
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
(Winnebago County YouTube Live) 

 
Thursday, March 25, 2021 

6:00 p.m.  
 

The Winnebago County Board Chairman has determined that an in-person meeting is not 
practicable or prudent because of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance .......................................... Board Member Paul Arena 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None  
B. Public Safety Sales Tax Presentation by David J. Rickert, CFO 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  

 
6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of February 25, 2021 minutes 
B. Layover of March 11, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – Approval of bills 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. Otter Creek Lake Utility District Board – Laid Over from February 25, 2021 Meeting 

1. Roger Allen (New Appointment – Replacing Edwin Herrman), Davis, Illinois, February 
2021 – February 2026 

B. University of Illinois Extension Board – Laid Over from February 25, 2021 Meeting 
1. Angie Goral (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2023 
2. Aaron Booker (Reappointment), Winnebago, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2023  
3. Jim Webster (Reappointment), Rockton, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2023 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Regarding HB2804 – Proposed Amendments to the State Statute 55 ILCS 

5/5-25012 (Board of Health) – Resolution Approved by both Finance and Operations 
and Administrative Committees 

3. Ordinance Providing for (i) the Issue of Approximately $3,725,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A 

4. Ordinance Providing for (i) the Issue of Approximately $1,465,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source, Series 2021B  
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-01-21 A map amendment to rezone +/- 7.93 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the RA, Rural Agricultural Residential District (a sub-district of the RA District) 
for the property that is commonly known as 8502 Burr Oak Road Roscoe, IL 61073 in 
Roscoe Township, District 4, to be laid over. 

2. V-01-21 A variation (of Section 23.8.4) to allow a gravel and/or a grass surface for off-
street parking areas instead of a hard surface, all weather dustless material (i.e. asphalt 
or cement) for the property that is commonly known as 2388 N. Conger Road, 
Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Seward Township, District 1, to be laid over. 

3. V-02-21 A variation (of Section 20.6.2) to waive the perimeter parking lot landscaping 
requirements for the property that is commonly known as 2388 N. Conger Road, 
Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Seward Township, District 1, to be laid over. 

4. V-03-21 A variation (of Section 20.6.3) to waive the interior parking lot landscaping 
requirements for the property that is commonly known as 2388 N. Conger Road, 
Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Seward Township, District 1, to be laid over. 

5. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Amending Previously Approved Grant Of Twenty Thousand Dollars 

($20,000) From Host Fees To The Rockford Area Convention And Visitors Bureau 
(RACVB) To Support The Tourism Through Special Events 

3. Resolution Electing To Opt-In To The Illinois Electronics Recycling Program For Program 
Year 2022 
 

D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (21-005) Awarding Bids for Mowing and Vegetation Control  

Cost:  $ 9,600 (Mowing - 2021 Season)    C.B. District:  County Wide 
           $ 9,600 (Mowing - 2022 Season) 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

           $ 10,350 (Weed Control - 2021 Season)   
           $ 10,350 (Weed Control - 2022 Season) 

3. (21-006) Award of Bid for the 2021 County General Letting 
Cost:  $1,066,280      C.B. District: County Wide  

4. (21-007) Resolution Authorizing the Appropriation of MFT Funds for the Maintenance 
of County Highways  
Cost:  $5,234,000      C.B. District: County Wide  
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report      
2. Resolution for Approval of an In-House Position of Winnebago County Criminal Justice 

Council (CJCC) Administrator 
3. Resolution for Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement for South Beloit High School 

Resource Officer Program 
4. Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for 

Telecommunication Services for Inmates of the Winnebago County Jail  
 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….…………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
11. New Business…………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
12. Announcements & Communications ................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 

A. Correspondence (see packet)  
 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 8, 2021 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 



























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: February 18, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli recommends the following person to serve 
as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Roger Allen of Davis, Illinois, to finish out a 5-year term from Feb 2021-Feb 2026 on the Otter 
Creek Lake Utility District Board left by Edwin Herrman. 
 

About the Otter Creek Lake Utility District 
Location:  1284 Lake Summerset Road, Davis, IL 61019 
Service Description:  Multi County water and sewer utility that serves the Lake Summerset 

subdivision in Winnebago and Stephenson County 

Board Composition:  Three trustees from Winnebago County, appointed by the Winnebago 
County Board Chairman with advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Public corporation existing pursuant to the Illinois Public Water District Act 
70 ILCS 3705/0.01 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Charges for services for water and sewer 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 







 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      
    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 

Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 

Committee:   Finance Committee and Operation and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:  3-18-2021 

Resolution Title:    RESOLUTION REGARDING HB2804 — PROPOSED   

    AMENDMENTS TO STATE STATUTE 55 ILCS 5/5-25012   
    (BOARD OF HEALTH)   

County Code:         N\A 

Board Meeting Date:    3-25-2021 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N\A                          Appropriation Amount:   $ N\A 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                Budget Impact: N\A   

 
 
Background Information:  

    Illinois State Representative Brad Halbrook has sponsored a new bill,  

    HB2804, which proposes amendments to the Illinois Counties Code  

    governing the Board of Health, 55 ILCS 5/5-25012; and Winnebago  

    County is opposed to this action. 

 
 
Recommendation:   Administration supports this resolution 
 
 
 
Contract/Agreement:  N/A 
 
 
 
Legal Review:    Lafakeria Vaughn 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:   N/A 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by:  Paul Arena  County Board Meeting: March 25, 2021 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE and 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  

 
 

RESOLUTION REGARDING HB2804 — PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE  
STATE STATUTE 55 ILCS 5/5-25012 (BOARD OF HEALTH) 

 
 

WHEREAS, 55 ILCS 5/5-25012 provides in part: “In counties with a population under 
500,000, one member shall be chosen from the county board or the board of county commissioners 
as the case may be… At least one member from each county on each multiple-county board of health 
shall be a physician licensed in Illinois to practice medicine in all of its branches, one member from 
each county on each multiple-county board of health shall be chosen from the county board or the 
board of county commissioners, as the case may be, and at least one member of the board of health 
shall be a dentist licensed in Illinois”; and  

 
WHEREAS, on February 18, 2021, Illinois State Representative Brad Halbrook has 

sponsored a new bill, HB2804, which proposes amendments to the Illinois Counties Code governing 
the Board of Health, 55 ILCS 5/5-25012; and  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments are to strike the following language: “one member 

from each county on each multiple-county board of health shall be chosen from the county board or 
the board of county commissioners, as the case may”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendment is to include the following new language: “No 

member of a county board or board of county commissioners, during the term of office for which he 
or she is elected, may be appointed or serve as a member of the board of health”; and 

 
WHEREAS, term limits for members of the board of health vary per the statute and HB2804 

would prohibit the appointment or service of a member of a county board or board of county 
commissioners during the term of office for which he or she is elected; and 

 
WHEREAS, a member of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois has 

consistently been appointed to serve as a member of the board of health and contributes to the 
fulfillment of the duties of the board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the board of health and its appointed members play a vital role in Winnebago 

County, Illinois and a county board member or board of commissioners member should be permitted 
to be a part of the board of health during their term of office, when the opportunity arises.  

 



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois opposes HB2804 and recommends that the Board of Health statute, 55 ILCS 5/5-
25012 not be amended as proposed.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
 

            Respectfully submitted, 
COMBINED FINANCE AND 

OPERATIONS AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEES 

 
 

 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman                            Keith McDonald, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby      Jean Crosby 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman      Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd       Dorothy Redd 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado         Jaime Salgado  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena       Paul Arena 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

 ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

 March 25, 2021  
 
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

     PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE LAID OVER:   

1. Z-01-21 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE +/- 7.93 ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE RA, RURAL AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) requested 
by Thomas and Karmelo Londo, property owners, for the property that is commonly 
known as 8502 Burr Oak Road Roscoe, IL 61073 in Roscoe Township. 
PIN: 04-36-451-013 C.B. District: 4 
Lesa Rating: Moderate Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: NO 

 ZBA Recommends: APPROVAL (6-0) 
ZC Recommends: TBD 
 

2. V-01-21 A VARIATION (OF SECTION 23.8.4) TO ALLOW A GRAVEL AND/OR 
A GRASS SURFACE FOR OFF-STREET PARKING AREAS INSTEAD OF A 
HARD SURFACE, ALL WEATHER DUSTLESS MATERIAL (I.E. ASPHALT OR 
CEMENT) requested by James G. Sacia, owner, dba N.I.T.E. Equipment, Inc., for the 
property that is commonly known as 2388 N. Conger Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in 
Seward Township. 
PIN: 13-03-200-004 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: NA Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: NA 

 ZBA Recommends: APPROVAL W/ CONDITIONS (5-0-1) 
ZC Recommends: TBD 
 

3. V-02-21 A VARIATION (OF SECTION 20.6.2) TO WAIVE THE PERIMETER 
PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS requested by James G. Sacia, 
owner, dba N.I.T.E. Equipment, Inc., for the property that is commonly known as 2388 
N. Conger Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Seward Township. 
PIN: 13-03-200-004 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: NA Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: NA 

 
 
 
4. 

ZBA Recommends: APPROVAL W/ CONDITIONS (5-0-1) 
ZC Recommends: TBD 
 
V-03-21 A VARIATION (OF SECTION 20.6.3) TO WAIVE THE INTERIOR 
PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS requested by James G. Sacia, 
owner, dba N.I.T.E. Equipment, Inc., for the property that is commonly known as 2388 
N. Conger Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Seward Township. 
PIN: 13-03-200-004 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: NA Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map:  NA 

 ZBA Recommends: APPROVAL W/ ZBA CONDITIONS (4-1-1) 
ZC Recommends: TBD 
 

 
 

 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 



 
Attachment 

 ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

 March 25, 2021  
 
 
5.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; 

not intended as a public notice):  
 

• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 13, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of  the    
     County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting 

is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, April 21, 2021, at 5:15 p.m. in Room 303 of     
     the County Administration Building.   

  
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

   



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by:  Jas Bilich  County Board Meeting March 25, 2021 

RESOLUTION 
 of the  
 COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 SUBMITTED BY:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 2021 CR _________ 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED GRANT OF TWENTY 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000) FROM HOST FEES TO THE ROCKFORD AREA 
CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU (RACVB) TO SUPPORT THE TOURISM 

THROUGH SPECIAL EVENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago supports the growth of economic development 
for the region by the attraction of tourism and special events to the area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors Bureau, (hereinafter 

“RACVB”) works to grow the economic impact to the Winnebago County Region being that in 
2018 tourism resulted in $392 million of visitor spending, which provided $6.8 million in local 
tax receipts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board approved an allocation of $20,000 by 

Resolution 2020-CR-143 to RACVB in hosting the 2021 USA Wrestling Tournament, and 2021 
Illinois State Middle School Basketball Championship Tournament; and 

 
WHEREAS, concerns and restrictions related to the pandemic of COVID-19 has caused 

these two tournaments to be canceled; and 
 
WHEREAS, the RACVB is requesting to amend the originally approved host fee 

allocation (2020-CR-143) of $20,000.00 (Twenty Thousand Dollars) to hold a special event in 
the region to draw visitors into Winnebago County for the NCAA Division, Post Season 
Women’s National Invitational Tournament (WNIT); and 

 
WHEREAS, the hosting of this event in March of 2021 would be the first ever in the 

region and be televised bringing the national spotlight to the area, which is planned to be 
centered at the UW Health Sports Factory in downtown Rockford; and  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the County of Winnebago, Illinois will 
grant $20,000.00 (Twenty Thousand Dollars) to the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors 
Bureau (RACVB) from host fee funds to support tourism by 2021 NCAA Division, Post Season 
Women’s National Invitational Tournament (WNIT); and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if any or all of the $20,000 (Twenty Thousand 

Dollars) in funding to RACVB are not utilized for the WNIT as provided herein, then RACVB 
shall return any remaining funds to the County; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption; and 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
Director of Regional Planning and Economic Development, County Administrator, the County 
Auditor, and the Executive Director of the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors Bureau. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

        Economic Development Committee 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAS BILICH, CHAIRMAN  JAS BILICH, CHAIRMAN 

DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN  DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, March 15, 2021   
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: buildingdept@wincoil.us      

 
Document Title:  Resolution Amending Previously Approved Grant Of Twenty Thousand 

Dollars ($20,000) From Host Fees To The Rockford Area Convention And 
Visitors Bureau (RACVB) To Support The Tourism Through Special Events 

County Code: NA 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, March 25, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $20,000 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: 41700 - 43190 Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 
Winnebago County has historically supported Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau 
(RACVB) to promote tourism and special events in the region. This request is a re-allocation of 
previously approved grant funds as opposed to a new request for new/additional monies. The 
originally approved funds ($20,000) were designated for 2 specific tournaments, 2021 USA 
Wrestling Tournament, and 2021 Illinois State Middle School Basketball Championship. Due to 
COVID-19 concerns and restrictions these tournaments were canceled, however the 2021 NCAA 
Division, Post Season Women’s National Invitational Tournament (WNIT) has not been canceled 
and will be hosted in Rockford. This will be a national televised tournament.  
 
Recommendation:  
Winnebago County has historically supported Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau 
(RACVB) to promote tourism and special events that spur positive economic impact to the region. 
It’s estimated that this tournament (special event) will bring 500 visitors, 800 hotel/motel night 
rentals with an impact of approximately $403,333 with the potential for growth. The Economic 
Development Committee along with the County Board has supported RACVB in its efforts, most 
recently with financial assistance from host fees for Stroll-On-State and 2 potential tournaments 
2020-CR-143, $25,000 ($5,000 – Stroll On State). 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau (RACVB) updates the Economic Development 
Committee on a quarterly basis and/or the entire Board as they see fit. 

http://www.wincoil.us/






Rockford Region Welcomes 
2021 Postseason WNIT

Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau Bid Proposal



 

Rockford Area Set to Welcome 2021 Postseason WNIT 
 
 
BID OVERVIEW 
On behalf of the Rockford region and our event partners, the Rockford Area Convention & Visitors 
Bureau (RACVB) is honored to submit a proposal to Triple Crown Sports (TCS) for the opportunity to host 
the 2021 Postseason Women’s National Invitational Tournament (WNIT). Located in the heart of the 
Midwest and only 1:15 to Chicago O’Hare International Airport and Milwaukee General Mitchell International 
Airport, the Rockford, Illinois, area offers some of the best sports tourism venues, a proven national event 
hosting track record, affordable amenities, and experienced event and hospitality professionals to ensure a 
memorable experience.   
 
RACVB has partnered with five organizations to create an initial proposal that covers: date availability; 
venues; court and equipment; hotels; health department support; welcome signage, marketing and servicing 
support; and the importance of sports tourism to RACVB and the region. Our goal is to present a concise 
overview of why the 2021 Postseason WNIT is sure to be a success in Rockford before continuing this 
dialogue with TCS from afar and in-person throughout the competitive bid process. Thank you in advance 
for your consideration. 
 

 

UW Health Sports Factory, Downtown Rockford, Illinois 



 

DATE AVAILABILITY 
RACVB is bidding on both RFP opportunities including: 
 

▪ Rounds 1-3: March 18-23, 2021  
▪ Rounds 4-6: March 29-April 3, 2021 

 
VENUE 
As part of a creative effort with the Rockford Park District, BMO Harris Bank Center and Netlynx Sports, 
RACVB proposes the UW Health Sports Factory (UWHSF) as an ideal competition and practice venue 
under one roof. Located downtown on the banks of the Rock River and directly across from our proposed 
headquarter hotel, UWHSF offers eight hardwood basketball courts, an onsite restaurant/bar and 
concessions, and flexible meeting rooms.  
 

 
 
RACVB has reserved four of the facility’s eight courts (we recommend using the south half of the building, 
though the north half is an option too) to create a championship atmosphere with one 50’x94’ (60’x120’ total 
footprint) competition court and two 50’x84’ practice courts. Other items regarding our proposed venue set-
up at UWHSF include: 
 

▪ Hard-wired internet to ensure smooth streaming capacity 
▪ Use of lift truck as necessary for signage and game recording purposes 
▪ Flexible set-up options for seating, team benches, scorer’s table and rented court/equipment 

UW Health Sports Factory 



 

▪ One official Tournament court, which was resurfaced in late 2019, will be rented from, set up and 
torn down by BMO Harris Bank Center staff. The Tournament court will feature professional grade 
hoops and shot clocks rented from Netlynx Sports 

▪ Two onsite practice courts (permanent UWHSF courts) 
▪ RACVB will cover all expenses for competition and practice venue (UWHSF) rental 
▪ RACVB will cover all expenses for court, professional grade hoops and shot clock rental, set-

up and tear-down 
▪ UWHSF Website: www.UWHealthSportsFactory.com  
▪ UWHSF Virtual Tour: http://www.360tour.us/rpd/sports_factory/Sports_Factory.html  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

WNIT Tournament Floor (to be installed at UWHSF) 

http://www.uwhealthsportsfactory.com/
http://www.360tour.us/rpd/sports_factory/Sports_Factory.html


 

HOTELS 
RACVB has pre-negotiated a headquarter hotel offer with Embassy Suites by Hilton Rockford 
Riverfront, a brand new (opened July 2020) 160-suite property complete with more than 22,000 of flexible 
meeting space, two restaurants, a fitness center and game room, an indoor pool, and a premium downtown 
location adjacent to historic Davis Park and directly across the Rock River from the competition and practice 
venue. Embassy Suites, which has offered a preliminary rate of $139 per night plus tax, is prepared 
to work with TCS’s housing provider to solidify lodging details for Tournament teams and event 
staff. Additional helpful property links include: 
 

▪ Embassy Suites by Hilton Rockford Riverfront Website: https://esrockford.com/ 
▪ Embassy Suites Hotel Video Tour: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=vxm9B_Pij9A 

 
In addition to the Embassy Suites as the headquarter property, RACVB will work alongside TCS’s housing 
provider for overflow rooms as necessary. 
 

 
 

Embassy Suites by Hilton 
Rockford Riverfront 

(UWHSF in Upper Right) 

https://esrockford.com/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=vxm9B_Pij9A


 

OTHER RFP ITEMS TO NOTE 
RACVB and its bid partners are prepared to work with TCS 
event staff to also ensure: 
 

▪ All teams have all pertinent information related to 
transportation to/from Chicago O’Hare and 
Milwaukee General Mitchell International Airports 

▪ All streaming and broadcasting needs are met for 
Rounds 1-3 and/or Rounds 4-6 

▪ COVID-19 testing is streamlined for TCS, the 
competition and practice venue, the headquarter hotel 
and other places deemed necessary by WNIT event 
staff 

▪ Attendance options are in alignment with Winnebago 
County Health Department (WCHD) recommendations 
and all mitigations related to the hosting of major 
college sporting events 

 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
RACVB, the Rockford Park District (which operates UWHSF) and Embassy Suites by Hilton Rockford 
Riverfront remains in close contact with the local Health Department throughout this bid process. The 
Winnebago County Health Department (WCHD) has endorsed this bid proposal without restrictions for 
an event without fans, and WCHD prefers to maintain an open dialogue with our bid committee and Triple 
Crown Sports should the admittance of spectators be allowable in accordance with State public health and 
safety recommendations. 
 
ABOUT RACVB 
A five-time Sports Events & Tourism Association (SportsETA) 
national award winning organization since 2016, RACVB is a 
private, non-profit organization established in 1984 to promote and 
champion efforts to make the Rockford Region an overnight visitor 
destination. As the Rockford region’s official tourism agency 
accredited by Destinations International (DI), the mission of RACVB 
is to drive quality of life and economic growth for our citizens through 
tourism marketing and destination development.  
 
In addition to its expertise in the meetings and conventions, leisure and 
locally-produced events spaces, sports tourism remains RACVB’s 
strongest competitive segment and a significant tourism economic driver 
for the region. For more information on the Bureau, RACVB’s sports 
tourism program and a sample of recent events hosted, visit 
www.GoRockford.com/Sports.  
 
RACVB encourages you to make calls to industry colleagues and can 
provide national event references at your request. 
 

http://www.gorockford.com/Sports


 

INCENTIVES & PARTNERSHIP CONSIDERATIONS 
As part of a collaborative 2021 Postseason WNIT partnership program between Triple Crown Sports 
and the Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau, RACVB is extending the following financial and 
in-kind Tournament enhancement incentives: 
 

▪ RACVB’s full sponsorship of venue rental expenses for competition and practice 
▪ RACVB’s full sponsorship of court, professional grade hoops and shot clocks rental, set-up and 

teardown expenses 
▪ RACVB’s sponsorship of up to $5,000 in additional event expenses that may include welcome 

signage, team welcome gifts, community activations, photography and videography, and other paid 
marketing programs 

▪ RACVB’s sponsorship of one pre-event site visit (including roundtrip airfare, hotel stay and food and 
beverage reimbursement) to help streamline TCS’s decision-making process 

▪ RACVB’s in-kind offering of concierge servicing assistance for community partner promotions, and 
local attractions, restaurant and shop specials 

▪ RACVB’s in-kind support of its comprehensive Bureau marketing and public relations program, 
including access to GoRockford social channels, eblast lists and other communications platforms 

 
As part of this partnership, RACVB would ask for recognition as Presenting Sponsor of this 2021 
Postseason WNIT Regional including these proposed benefits: 
 

▪ RACVB name and logo recognition on the competition court with visibility to online streaming and 
television audiences 

▪ RACVB name and logo recognition on 2021 Postseason WNIT website 
▪ RACVB name and logo recognition on 2021 Postseason WNIT social channels 
▪ RACVB name and logo recognition in 2021 Postseason WNIT promotional flyers, programs and 

other marketing materials 
▪ RACVB name and logo recognition across Triple Crown Sports website and social channels 

 
Moreover, RACVB is eager to co-create with TCS additional partnership activations and cross promotional 
efforts that magnify each organization’s programs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RACVB BID PROPOSAL KEY CONTACTS 
As the process moves forward, RACVB is prepared to build out an event organizational chart to ensure 
operational efficiency. Our key contacts during the bid process include: 
 

▪ Primary Bid Contacts: Lindsay Arellano, Vice President of Sales & Service, RACVB, 
LArellano@GoRockford.com, 815-489-1653 AND Nick Povalitis, Vice President of Marketing & 
Sports Development, RACVB, NPovalitis@GoRockford.com, 815-489-1652 
 

▪ Competition & Practice Venue Contact: Danielle Potter, Operations Director, UW Health Sports 
Factory, DaniellePotter@RockfordParkDistrict.org, 815-987-1628 

 
▪ Headquarter Hotel Contact: Bethany Bohn, Senior Sales Manager, Embassy Suites by Hilton 

Rockford Riverfront, Bethany.Bohn@Hilton.com, 815-668-7878 
 

▪ Health Department Contact: Todd Marshall, Director of Environmental Health Services, 
Winnebago County Health Department, TMarshall@WCHD.org, 815-720-4118 
 

 
 

 
On behalf of the RACVB, our bid partners and the Rockford region, we are ready to discuss the 
Rockford area’s proposal at your earliest convenience. Thank you again for your consideration. 

 
 

Rockford, IL | Home of the 2021 Postseason WNIT 

mailto:LArellano@GoRockford.com
mailto:NPovalitis@GoRockford.com
mailto:DaniellePotter@RockfordParkDistrict.org
mailto:Bethany.Bohn@Hilton.com
mailto:TMarshall@WCHD.org


2/27/2021 Rockford's UW Health Sports Factory to host WNIT Regional March 19-22

https://www.rrstar.com/story/sports/2021/02/25/rockfords-uw-health-sports-factory-wnit-basketball-regional-dates/6816110002/ 1/3

SPORTS

Rockford lands WNIT Regional from
March 19-22
Tourney adds to Rockford's reputation "as a sports tourism destination"

Matt Trowbridge Rockford Register Star
Published 5:29 p.m. CT Feb. 25, 2021 Updated 6:17 p.m. CT Feb. 25, 2021

ROCKFORD — The UW Health Sports Factory will host the most well-known national event
yet in Rockford, but the city won’t make much money off the Women’s National Invitation
Tournament.

City officials talked at a Thursday news conference at the Sports Factory of a “competitive
bid” that involved 11 different Rockford organizations. That bid included paying all the
facility costs for the eight NCAA Division I women’s basketball teams that will play in the
WNIT Rockford regional from March 19-22.

With fans most likely limited to parents of players because of the ongoing pandemic, the
WNIT regional won’t bring in as much sports tourism revenue as normal.

“This is not the same as hosting a 700-team soccer event, but it is an investment in our
reputation,” said John Groh, president and CEO of the Rockford Area Convention & Visitors
Bureau. “It’s a stake in the ground to say we can host, and we will host, a national
tournament.

"Coming out of the pandemic, with historically low hotel occupancy, high unemployment in
the industry and a decimated restaurant industry, we believe that being able to host an event
of this caliber will help us demonstrate to other tournament directors and organizers that
Rockford is open for business.

“You always want a diverse basket of events. This hits a sweet spot we needed to fill on our
resume and will help us host other tournaments in the future.”

For subscribers: Coronavirus pandemic stripped millions in revenue from Rockford
restaurants

https://www.rrstar.com/
https://www.rrstar.com/staff/3903977001/matt-trowbridge/
https://www.rrstar.com/news/20200418/rockford-hotel-industry-struggles-amid-pandemic
https://www.rrstar.com/story/news/2021/02/20/covid-19-stripped-millions-rockford-illinois-restaurants/4448775001/
https://www.rrstar.com/story/news/2021/02/20/covid-19-stripped-millions-rockford-illinois-restaurants/4448775001/


2/27/2021 Rockford's UW Health Sports Factory to host WNIT Regional March 19-22

https://www.rrstar.com/story/sports/2021/02/25/rockfords-uw-health-sports-factory-wnit-basketball-regional-dates/6816110002/ 2/3

Read More: Health care workers receive second dose of COVID-19 vaccine at
SwedishAmerican

It won’t bring future WNIT events to town. Sarah Molina, the basketball events director for
Triple Crown Sports, said her organization called Rockford to ask for a a bid because the UW
Sports Factory didn’t have to worry about seating many fans this year.

“Normally the universities host the event and you see the fan base grow and grow each
round,” Molina said. “In this case, we are limited because of the pandemic.”

She said the Sports Factory, with its multiple courts and convenient nearby hotels, was a
perfect fit under pandemic conditions for first- and second-round games in the 32-team
tournament.

“You can have the practice facility and the game facility all in one convenient location,” she
said.

Groh said the tourney would generate almost 1,000 room nights at the Embassy Suites by
Hilton Rockford Riverfront and Radisson hotels during a time with “historically low”
occupancy rates of 40% because of the coronavirus. 

Mayor Tom McNamara said sports tourism has been hit especially hard during COVID times,
but they are now “seeing more and more signs of optimism.” He also said this tournament
will add to Rockford's already large reputation "as a sports tourism destination."

"Today’s announcement is another sign that we are going to get through this pandemic and
our community is ready to open our doors for business. We are ready to welcome visitors
back to our city,” he said.

The visitors bureau worked closely with the Rockford Park District, BMO Harris Bank, the
two hotels, Northern Illinois University athletics and the Winnebago County Health
Department, among other organizations.

“Our collaborative community made a difference,” said Danielle Potter, the park district’s
operations director. “Some groups talk to one person for the facility and then another for
their ACVB. We work in lock-step. That made a difference.”

The other three regionals are at cities known for hosting NCAA basketball tournaments:
Charlotte, North Carolina, Memphis, Tennessee, and Fort Worth, Texas. Rockford officials
like being in that company even if there isn't a big immediate payoff.

https://www.rrstar.com/story/news/2021/01/07/swedishamerican-workers-get-second-covid-vaccine/6581904002/


2/27/2021 Rockford's UW Health Sports Factory to host WNIT Regional March 19-22

https://www.rrstar.com/story/sports/2021/02/25/rockfords-uw-health-sports-factory-wnit-basketball-regional-dates/6816110002/ 3/3

"Our team believes organizations like Triple Crown will be looking for communities and
facilities that are easy to work with that are maybe smaller metro areas than they have been
in before," Groh said. "They do 200 events a year. This is the first of many we hope to do with
them."

Matt Trowbridge: mtrowbridge@rrstar.com; @matttrowbridge

mailto:mtrowbridge@rrstar.com
http://twtter.com/MattTrowbridge






















































































 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 







































 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 COMMITTEE 



  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
 
Prepared By: County Administrator/Patrick Thompson  
Committee:    Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:   March 17, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution for Approval of an In-House Position of Winnebago County Criminal 
Justice Council (CJCC) Administrator   
Board Meeting Date:   March 25, 2021  
 
Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted? No  Appropriation Amount:    $64,024                                         
If not, explain funding source:   Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  To be assigned                      Budget Impact:  $4,024 

 
Background Information:    The Criminal Justice Council (CJCC) Coordinator has been a contracted 
position with the City of Rockford and the Region 1 Planning Council (R1PC) since June 2018. The County 
desires to bring the administrative services of the CJCC for the continuing criminal justice planning 
processes under County administration, which includes incorporation of an in-house position of the CJCC 
Coordinator.   The purpose of the position is to guide strategic planning and systems changes as well as 
leadership and coordination of special projects within the CJCC.   
  
Recommendation:   The Public Safety & Judiciary Committee, chaired by Burt Gerl, has reviewed the 
resolution presented to the Board and recommends its approval.   

Contract/Agreement:   N/A  
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed with the States Attorney’s office. 
 
Follow-Up:   If approved, this would be effective April 1, 2021. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


        COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
        March 25, 2021 

 
RESOLUTION  

OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2021 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY: BURT GERL  

 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AN IN-HOUSE POSITION OF THE WINNEBAGO 

COUNTY CRIMINAL JUSTICE COUNCIL (CJCC) ADMINISTRATOR   
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board is the statutory governing body of Winnebago County, 
Illinois, a body politic and corporate; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2018, the County and City of Rockford (City) established the Winnebago County 
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council (CJCC) to provide coordinated leadership that identifies 
and addresses emerging and existing criminal justice issues, and to improve and establish policies 
that are research based, technologically advanced, effective and work to break the cycle of crime; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the following County units are represented as members of the CJCC: Winnebago 
County Board office, 17th Judicial Circuit Court, Sheriff’s Department, and State’s Attorney’s 
offices; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CJCC Administrator has been a contracted position with the City and Region 1 
Planning Council (RPC) pursuant to a professional services agreement since June 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County desires to bring the administrative services of the CJCC for the 
continuing criminal justice planning processes under County administration, which includes 
incorporation of an in-house position of the CJCC Administrator; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CJCC Administrator will perform the job duties and functions as set forth in the 
job description attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County recognizes the importance of the CJCC and the value of additional 
support services within the County that can be offered to contribute to the continued operations of 
the CJCC by the addition of this position.   



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
approve the in-house position of the Winnebago County Criminal Justice Council (CJCC) 
Administrator.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the County Board Chairman, County Administrator and 
County Auditor. 

Respectfully submitted, 
    PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

  

AGREE       DISAGREE 

 

_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman          Burt Gerl, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Aaron Booker, Vice Chairman     Aaron Booker, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy            Kevin McCarthy 
 
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark            Brad Lindmark 
 
________________________________    ____________________________________ 
Tim Nabors        Tim Nabors 
 
________________________________    _____________________________________ 
Angie Goral        Angie Goral 
 
__________________________________       _____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd        Dorothy Redd  

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2021. 

 

 

 



                      _______________________________________  
                                                                                                     Joseph Chiarelli 

          Chairman of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

______________________________   
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 

 

 



Position Summary: 

The Criminal Justice Coordinating Council (CJCC) Administrator is responsible for the administration
of the County Criminal Justice Coordinating Council guiding and planning system changes, as well as 
administration, coordination and development of special projects.  This position is responsible for 
fiscal and data management of projects, project staff, lobbies for funding and prepares and submits 
grant proposals. 

Reporting Relationship: 

This position reports to the County Administrator and the CJCC Executive Committee. 

Essential Functions: 

 Develops and coordinates the planning and implementation of Criminal Justice Coordinating
Council (CJCC) initiatives and activities under the direct supervision of the CJCC Executive
Committee and in partnership with the National Criminal Justice Association, the Illinois
Criminal Justice Information Authority and Loyola University.

o Works collaboratively with CJCC partners to coordinate development of a strategic work
plan, policies and procedures that are updated periodically, consistent with the CJCC
mission and goals.

o Collaborate with agencies to recommend changes and improvements to justice
practices & procedures in Winnebago County to the CJCC, incorporating concepts of
continuous quality improvement and implementation of evidence-based best practices.

o Recommends programmatic, policy, procedural, or legislative changes based upon the
analysis of data opinion surveys, and summary or historical research.

o Studies and develops methods to coordinate the availability and development of
resources, facilities, and services that are required for, or offered by, the CJCC and its
programs.

o Presents information to the CJCC, the County and the community.
o Collaborates with governmental, judicial and private agencies to coordinate services

and assist in the resolution of problems, questions, or requests related to services
provided.

o Communicates with state legislative leaders on topics affecting the criminal justice
system Provides updates to elected officials and stakeholders as needed.

Non-Bargaining Exempt Revision Date: 
02/03/2021 

Job Title: 
Department: 

Criminal Justice Coordinating Council (CJCC) Administrator
County Board Office (Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 

Initiatives) 



 
 Provides professional consultation for CJCC and other governing committees and 

subcommittees as necessary. 
o Assists CJCC Chair, and committee chairpersons with the development and posting of 

agendas, meeting minutes, and other correspondence. 
o Seeks and coordinates quarterly speakers for meetings. 
o Attends all relevant meetings and ensures compliance with Open Meetings and Open 

Records Laws. 
o Represents the CJCC in coordinated justice system planning and data collection efforts 

at local and state committee meetings, and local and national seminars. 
  

 Responsible for the daily operations of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives. 
o Oversees the record-keeping procedures of the CJCC, ensuring accurate and timely 

fiscal reporting. 
o Assists programs in preparation and coordination of annual budget documents and 

requests, including analysis of program revenue and expenditure data and projections 
when requested. 

o Researches funding options and prepares, and submits grants in a timely fashion. 
o Coordinates grant preparation and submission among requesting County departments. 
o Assists in the negotiations and coordinates the development of contracts and 

agreements relating to the justice system. 
o Ensures compliance with state contracts. 
o Monitors budget for the CJCC programs to identify problem areas of duplication and 

recommends refinements. 
o Establishes and implements internal control mechanisms and ensures program is 

making satisfactory progress towards program goals. 
 

 Analyzes business and automation needs for the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives. 

o Researches and evaluates needed equipment and software and makes 
recommendations. 

o Develops and manages the design and functionality of department websites and 
databases. 
 

Education and Experience 
 

 Bachelor's degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Social Work, Organizational 
Development or closely related field. 

 
 Masters’ Degree preferred. 
 
 Five (5) years’ work experience working in the criminal justice system, public administration or 

human services field. 
 
 Two (2) years’ management or administration experience in a multiple division organization. 
 
 Previous experience in researching, writing, and administration of grants. 
 
 Experience with strategic planning and budget management preferred.  
 
 Must successfully pass criminal and caregiver background checks. 
 



Skills and Abilities: 
 
 Knowledge of and ability to effectively utilize the principles of strategic and long and short 

range planning. 
 
 Skill in analyzing complex administrative information and issues, defining problems and 

evaluating alternatives and recommending methods, procedures and techniques for resolution 
of issues. 

 
 Ability to plan, develop, implement, and evaluate projects and programs. 
 
 Ability to maintain a professional demeanor when dealing with the public. 
 
 Ability to develop department goals and objectives. 
 
 Ability to perform detailed work accurately and independently in compliance with stringent time 

limits with minimal direction and supervision. 
 
 Ability to prioritize duties to accomplish a high volume of work product while adapting to 

constant changes in priority. 
 
 Knowledge of County policies, procedures and practices. 

 
 Ability to analyze and prepare organizational and functional reports from research data. 

 
 Ability to explain relevant information effectively to various audiences. 

 
 Ability to communicate effectively with other members of the staff, supervisor, and the public.  

 
 Ability to calculate mathematical calculations.  

 
 Ability to define problems and deal with a variety of situations. 
 
 Ability to think quickly, maintain self-control, and adapt to stressful. 

 
 Ability to maintain discretion regarding business-related files, reports and conversations, within 

the provision of open records law and other applicable State and Federal Statutes and 
Regulations. 

 
 Must have ability to work accurately with attention to detail. 
 
 Ability to maintain confidentiality. 
 
 Ability to prepare and maintain accurate and concise records and reports. 
 
 Ability to analyze facts and to exercise sound judgment in arriving at conclusions. 

 
Physical Requirements: 

 Refer to Physical Essential Functions Description Form.  
 

 



  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
 
Prepared By: Chief Deputy/Rick Ciganek   
Committee:    Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:   March 17, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution for Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement for South Beloit High 
School Resource Officer Program    
Board Meeting Date:   March 25, 2021  
 
Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted? Yes                                              Appropriation Amount:    $213,185.36/2 years 
                                         
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  To be assigned                      Budget Impact:  none 

 
Background Information:    South Beloit Community School District 320 began contracting School 
Resource Officer services from the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office in the ‘19-‘20 school year. The 
Sheriff’s Office provides one deputy. The school district pays actual costs for the assigned deputy for ten 
months of the annual salary.  This resolution will renew the current contract for another two year period 
beginning with the ’21-’22 school year.    
  
Recommendation:   The Public Safety & Judiciary Committee, chaired by Burt Gerl, review and approve 
the resolution and then present to the Board and recommend its approval.   

Contract/Agreement:   attached  
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed with the States Attorney’s office. 
 
Follow-Up:   If approved, this would be effective April 1, 2021. 

http://www.wincoil.us/






























 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Purchasing Department | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 Room 202 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4380  |  Email: purchasing@wincoil.us     

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By: Purchasing on behalf of the WCSO  
Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:  March 17, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for 
Telecommunication Services for Inmates of the Winnebago County Jail   
County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance      
Board Meeting Date:  March 25, 2021 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?             N/A                                        Appropriation Amount:    
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:     INMATE COMMISSARY ACCOUNT      Budget Impact:   N/A 
 

Background Information:   The Purchasing Department sent out Request for Proposals for Jail 
Telecommunication Services with Global Tel*Link Corporation (GTL) being awarded the multi-
year commission generating contract. The contract terms allowed for amendments or 
adjustments of services, as needed, when the conditions are agreed upon by both the County 
and GTL. Amendment #2 addresses the following terms. 

1. Replacing all current IP enhanced tablets and charging stations with the latest technology.  
2. Streamlining the commission generating accounting formula. 
3. Adding on-premise Video Visitation and Remote Video Visitation with sixty (60) days online 

recording storage. 

The existing on-premise Video Visitation equipment is original to the CJC building. Superintendent 
Redmond was advised by County Facilities, six months ago that half the system was down, and ongoing 
repairs were very costly for the end-of-life system. Dave Neuliep estimated replacement cost to be 
upwards of $500,000 if replaced an on-site visitation system. With this new enhanced service negotiated 
with GTL, the County will no longer need to repair or replace the outdated system equipment in the CJC 
Visitation Center, resulting is savings in terms of repair or replacement costs. 
 
Recommendation: Superintendent Redmond recommends approval of Amendment 2 which 
allows for all new enhanced tablets, video visitation system and an $14,000 (now $48,000) annual 
bonus increase. 
 
Contract/Agreement:  Amendment 2 is for three years with one additional option year. 
 
Follow-Up:  Purchasing Department will route GTL Amendment 2 for signature from 
Winnebago County Board Chairman Chiarelli.  GTL will install all new equipment in 9 months. 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  3/25/2021 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Burt Gerl, Chairman 
Submitted by:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee  
   

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN TO AMEND CONTRACT FOR TELECOMMUNICATION 
SERVICES FOR INMATES OF THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY JAIL  

 
WHEREAS, since 2018, Global Tel*Link Corporation (GTL) has provided, under contract 

with the County, telecommunication services to the inmates of the Winnebago County Jail; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the County and GTL have agreed to amend the Telecommunication Services 
contract agreement with the County Jail;  and,  

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the account 
for the aforementioned services shall be as follows: 

INMATE COMMISSARY ACCOUNT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is hereby authorized and directed to, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, execute agreement Amendment 2 with Global Tel*Link 
Corporation. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an y  agreemen t  entered into, pursuant to the 
authority granted in this Resolution, shall contain substantially the same terms as those 
contained in the Amendment which is attached hereto as "Resolution Exhibit A". 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Sheriff, Corrections 
Superintendent, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County 
Auditor. 



          Respectfully Submitted, 
      PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

BURT GERL, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BURT GERL, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

BRAD LINDMARK 
 
 

                                                                   BRAD LINDMARK 
 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 

                                                                 KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

TIM NABORS 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of __________________________2021. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

                                                  JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 



Page 

1 

GTL CONFIDENTIAL      Enhanced Services – IP Enabled Tablets 

AMENDMENT #2 TO INMATE TELEPHONE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Amendment # 2  (“Amendment”), takes effect of the date signed by all the parties listed in this 

preamble (“Effective Date”), amends and revises that certain Master Services Agreement dated August 14, 2017, as 

amended from time to time (the “Agreement”), by and between Global Tel*Link Corporation with an address of 

3120 Fairview Park Drive, Suite 300, Falls Church, Virginia 22102 (“Company”), and the Winnebago County 

Sheriff’s Department with an address of 650 W. State Street, Rockford, IL 61102 (“Premises Provider”) Company 

and Premises Provider (collectively, the “Parties” and each a “Party”). All capitalized terms not defined herein shall 

have the definitions set forth in the Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to amend the Agreement to make changes to the Master Services 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to modify certain Enhanced Services currently provided, 

specifically IP-Enabled Tablets; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed in consideration of such modifications to currently provided 

Enhanced Services to extend the term of the Agreement; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants set forth in this Amendment, and 

for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged by the Parties’ signatures, the Parties 

agree as follows: 

The following amendments to Service Schedule, Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets are made: 

1. The column titled “# of Tablets in Section 3, “Deployment Locations” in Service Schedule, Enhanced

Services – IP-Enabled Tablets is deleted.

2. (a) Service Schedule, Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 6 “Tablets” is deleted and replaced

with the following:

6. Tablets. Company will provide Tablets at Premise Provider’s facility at a one to one (1:1)

prisoner to tablet ratio. Company shall have the discretion to select the brand, type, and other 

specifications of the Tablets, including the specific services and applications available on the 

Tablets, and may replace, upgrade, or substitute the Tablets at any time during the Term per 

mutual agreement with the customer. Tablets shall at all times remain the sole and exclusive 

property of Company. Each inmate provided with access to a Tablet must agree to accompanying 

terms and conditions to be granted use of the Tablet.  Company will install Tablet charging 

enclosures (individually “Station” and collectively “Stations”) at locations agreed upon by the 

Parties.  Company will install access points to enable access within each Location, as reasonably 

permitted by layout and other characteristics of the Location. 

(b) Service Schedule, Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 6(a)(i), “Enhanced Services, 

Content,” is deleted and amended to read as follows: 

(i) Inmate Content Access. Company will make available access to certain content through 

the Tablets, including music, games, electronic messaging, eBooks (“Content Access”). 

Content Access will be provided on a per minute basis. Content Access will be supplied 

on a rolling basis as soon as reasonably practicable following deployment of Enhanced 

Services.  Company reserves the right to add, alter or discontinue any Content Access. 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



 

Page  

2 

 

GTL CONFIDENTIAL       Enhanced Services – IP Enabled Tablets    

 

(c) Service Schedule, Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 6(a)(ii), “Learning 

Management System,” is deleted and amended to read as follows: 

(ii) Learning Management System: Company will make available at no cost to Premises Provider 

a web-based highly secure Learning Management System (LMS). Company will make available 

unlimited concurrent licenses offered on a subscription basis to Premises Provider.   

 
(d) Service Schedule, Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 6(a)(iii), “Debit Link 

Accounts,” is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

i. Video Visitation. On-premise and Remote video visitation with no less than sixty 

(60) days online recording storage.  

(e) Service Schedule, Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, new added paragraph, Section 6(b), 

“Company Obligations,” shall be amended to include the following provision: 

 

Company shall complete installation of all solutions addressed in this Amendment within 

nine (9) months from the date of full execution of this Amendment. 

All remaining language in Section 6, including any amendment(s) thereto, is without modification 

and remains in full force and effect. 

3. Service Schedule, Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 7 “Enhanced Services and Accessories 

Rates, is deleted and amended to read as follows:   

7. Enhanced Services and Accessories Rates. Company may apply the following charges on 

Enhanced Services and the use of the Tablets; provided, however, Company may upon mutual agreement in 

writing of the Parties change any pricing. Taxes, and regulatory and other mandated fees may also apply. 

 

a. Voice Communication will be charged at the same per-minute rate as ITS under this Agreement. 

 

b. Paid Inmate Content Access:   

1. Standard Profile: $0.05 per minute 

2. Promotional Profile: $0.03 per minute 

3. Free Profile: $0.00 per minute 

 

c. Video Visitation Services: 30 minutes free of local visitation per week. $0.25 per minutes after 30 

free minutes per week of local visitation has been exhausted. 

 

d. $0.25 per minute Remote Visit Price  

 

e. Replacement Headphones or Earbuds: Available for purchase through the commissary. 

 

f. Messaging From Inmate Family and Friends (charged to inmate family and friends): 

1. $0.25 per written message 

2. $0.25 per photo attachment (in addition to charge for any written message, if provided) 

3. $1.00 per video message   

All remaining language in Section 7, including any amendment(s) thereto, is without modification 

and remains in full force and effect. 

4. Service Schedule, Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 8, “Tablet Commission” is deleted and 

amended to read as follows: 



 

Page  

3 

 

GTL CONFIDENTIAL       Enhanced Services – IP Enabled Tablets    

 

8. Tablet Commissions.  Company will pay Premises Provider a commission as follows.  

Commission on revenue from voice communications completed using the Tablets will be paid in 

accordance with the terms of the Agreement governing Inmate Telephone Services. Company will pay 

monthly a sum equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of gross revenue (less all applicable taxes, government 

imposed fees or charges, and billing or security fees) received from the per minute rate charged to inmates 

for access to the Tablet, excluding video visitation (“Content Revenue”).   Company will also pay Premises 

Provider monthly a sum equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the gross revenue received from billable 

video visitation services sessions beginning in Year 3 of this Amendment. Tablet Commission payments 

will be completed monthly, and all Tablet Commission payments will be final and binding upon the 

Premises Provider unless written objection is received by the Company within sixty (60) days of receipt of 

commission payment by the Premises Provider. 

 

Company will update all existing Inspire 2 subscription tablets with new Inspire 3 usage (per minute) 

tablets at no cost to Premises Provider. 

 

All remaining language in Section 8, including any amendment(s) thereto, is without modification 

and remains in full force and effect. 

 

The following amendment to Inmate Telephone Service Schedule is made: 

 

5.  Inmate Telephone Service Schedule, Section 3, “Compensation” is amended to provide that GTL will pay 

the annual bonus of $48,000 within 30 days of the anniversary date of this Amendment, and every 

subsequent anniversary this Amendment remains in effect.  

 

All remaining language in the Inmate Telephone Service Schedule, including any amendment(s) 

thereto, is without modification and remains in full force and effect. 

 

The following amendment to the MSA is made: 

Paragraph numbered 3, Term, “shall be deleted and replaced as follows:   

 

6. In consideration of the foregoing, the Parties agree to extend the Term of the Agreement by three (3) years 

from the last signature on this Amendment. Upon prior written agreement by the Parties, and at least ninety 

(90) days prior to the end of the original or any renewal term, this Agreement can be amended for an 

additional one (1) year term. This Agreement shall not be renewed more than one (1) renewal term.     

 

In the event of any inconsistencies between the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement and the terms and 

conditions contained herein, the terms and conditions contained herein shall control.  Except as set forth in this 

Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect, without modification or amendment, and is hereby 

ratified and confirmed.  This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be an 

original, and all of which shall be one and the same contract.  Original signatures transmitted by facsimile or 

electronic mail shall be effective to create such counterparts.  Each person whose signature appears below warrants 

and represents that they have the requisite authority to execute this Amendment on behalf of the entity for which 

they are signing. 

 

 

 



 

Page  

4 

 

GTL CONFIDENTIAL       Enhanced Services – IP Enabled Tablets    

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the foregoing Amendment has been executed by the Parties, effective as 

of the latest date listed below. 

 

Company 

Global Tel*Link Corporation 

 

By:       

Name:       

Title:       

Date:________________________________ 

 Premises Provider  

Winnebago County Board Chairman 

 

By:       

Name:       

Title:       

Date:________________________________ 

 

 

 
 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: March 25, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Annual Assessment Letter for Byron Station (Report 05000454/2020006 and 

05000455/2020006). 
 

b. Exelon Generation Company, LLC – Request for Additional Information Regarding 
Proposed Fleet Alternative to Documentation Requirements for Pressure 
Retaining Bolting. 

 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications a notice that on or around 
April 9, 2021 Spectrum make a change to the channel lineup for the following: 

 
a. Township of Harlem 
b. Township of Rockton 
c. Township of Roscoe 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received from ComEd a News Release regarding ComEd 

Customers to Receive Personalized Information about how Grid Investments Benefit 
Them.   

 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Roger Allen
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Regarding HB2804 - Proposed Amendments to the State Statute
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development
	Resolution Amending Previously Approved Grant from Host Fees to RACVB to Support Tourism
	Resolution Electing to Opt-In to IL Electronics Recycling Program for Program Year 2022
	Public Works Committee
	21-005 Awarding Bids for Mowing & Vegetation Control
	21-006 Award of Bid for 2021 County General Letting
	21-007 Resolution Authorizing Appropriation of MFT Funds for Maintenance of Cty. Highways
	Public Safety Committee
	Resolution for Approval of In-House Position of Winn. Cty. Criminal Justice Council (CJCC) Administrator
	Resolution for Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement for S. Beloit H.S. Resource Officer Program
	Resolution Authorizing Cty. Brd. Chairman to Amend Contract for Telecommunication Services for Inmates
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



